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RESPONDENTS’ CLOSING ARGUMENT AND POST TRIAL I3RIEF

TheRespondents,SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc., Edwin L. Frederick,RichardJ.

Frederick, by andthroughtheirattorney,David S. O’Neill, hereinpresenttheirClosing

ArgumentandPost-TrialBriefpursuantto theHearingOfficer OrderoftheIllinois Pollution

Control BoardofOctober31, 2003. In supportofits position,theRespondentsstateasfollows:

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

SkokieValley AsphaltCo, Inc. (SVA) wasan Illinois corporationwith officesat768 S.

LakeSt., Grayslake,LakeCounty,Illinois atall timesrelevantto theallegedviolationsthat are

the subjectof this Complaint(Trial at 278). Eastof SVA’s sitein Grayslakeis theAvon-

FremontDrainageDitch. Theditch flows to thenorththroughthecity of Grayslakeandinto

Third Lake(Trial at 145-146,353). ThelandbetweenSVA’s facility andtheAvon-Fremont

Ditch is actively-farmedfields (Trial at 340,341). NearbybusinessesincludedMitch’s



Landscapingto thewest(Trial at 221). Thereis alsoa largelandfill in thevicinity. Further

awaythereareotherindustries(Trial at 340).

SVA wasapavingcontractorandatruckingandmaterialstoragebusiness(Trial at277,

278,437). TheGrayslakelocationhousedtheestimatingdepartment,theoffice andall the

peoplewho did billing. The site includedamaintenancegarageweretheyworkedon various

equipmentandtrucks. Someasphaltliquid andasphaltprimercoatswerestoredat thesite.

Previously,anasphaltcompanyhadbeenoperatedatthesitebyotherowners.(Trial at 277,278).

Duringthisperiod,Edwin L. Frederick,Jr. wasthePresidentofSVA (Trial at433). His

brother,RichardJ. Frederick,was theVice President(Trial at278). Eachofthebrothersowned

fifty percentof SVA andwerethe only shareholdersofSVA (Trial at 278).

RichardFrederick’sdutiesfor thecompanyincludedconstructionmanagement.Hewas

responsiblefor schedulingofall jobs,estimating,budgeting,dealingwith superintendentsand

foremen,hiringandcontrollingall employees,union contracts,personnelissues,subcontractors,

outsideshops,equipmentpurchasingandrepairandreviewofequipment(Trial at279,280). He

alsowasin chargeofsafetyandtraffic mattersatthejob sites,approvingcontractmattersand

approvingthepaymentofinvoices(Trial at280,281).

Edwin FrederickwasPresidentofSVA. Mostofhis dutiesrelatedto financialmatters

andestimating. Hewasresponsiblefor estimating,insuranceissuesandbankingmatters. (Trial

at 281). Hedid work asliaison with thebanksandsuppliers,purchasedmaterials,managed

payrollandreviewedaccountsreceivableand accountspayable.His dutiesinvolvedjob- site

meetings,reviewingjob-sitework, consultationwith foremenandengineers,liaison with

governmentofficials andcustomers(Trial at282).

TheFrederickswerenotresponsiblefor all day-to-dayoperationsofSVA (Trial at437).



TheFrederickssharedcontroloftheoperationofthecompanywith otherforemanand

superintendents(Trial at278,437). Edwin andRichardFrederickmademajormanagement

decisionsanddecisionsonspendinglargeamountsof moneyonbehalfof SVA. Otherdecisions

weremadeby othermanagementpeople(Trial at439).

In 1998, the assetsofSVA weresold to CurranContracting(Trial at 435). Thesale

includedtheassetsincluding land,buildings,plants,trucks,constructionequipmentand

inventory(Trial at475). This saleincludedall of therecordsofSVA. In 2000, Currandisposed

ofall ofSVA’s records(Trial at 319,321).Consequently,manyoftherecordsconcerningthe

activitiesofSVA, EdwinFrederickandRichardFrederickwith respectto operations,

environmentalconcernsandresponsesandthehistoryoftheSVA sitearenot available.

TheIllinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency(TEPA) issuedanNPDESpermitto SVA

in April of 1986 to allow SVA to dischargestormwaterinto GraysLakethroughastormwater

sewer(Trial at 137,221). Thepermit wasissuedsolelyto SVA andnot to Edwin Frederickor

RichardFrederickeitherindividually orjointly with SVA (Trial at 70).

Oneof theconditionsofthepermit statedthat SVA wasrequiredto submitDischarge

Monitoring Reports(DMR) to theIEPA on amonthly basis.(Trialat 283). To comply with the

DMR requirement,SVA’s dispatcherswouldhaveoneofthe laborerstakeawatersamplefrom

thedischargepipethat wastherepresentativesamplingpoint. Thesamplewasdeliveredto the

North ShoreSanitaryDistrict whereit wastestedfor theparametersspecifiedin theNPDES

permit(Trial at23).

Thetestresultsweremailedbackto SVA andthetestresultdatawasusedto complete

theIEPA DMR report. ThereportswereusuallycompletedbyBob Christiansen— an SVA

Dispatcher(Trial at284,285). Thereportswereusuallysignedby RichardFrederickasan officer



of thecompany(Trial at 286,313).Richardreviewedthedatasuppliedin theDMRs (Trial at

284,285),butRichardFrederickhadno wayto determineif the informationsubmittedin the

reportwasaccurate(Trial at286). Further,thecertificationon theDMR form doesnot require

thesignatoryto verify the information; it just asksthemto certify thattheyare” familiar with the

informationcontainedin this reportandthatto thebestofmy knowledgeandbeliefsuch

informationis truecompleteandaccurate”(Trial at74, 75).

ThroughouttheentireperiodoftheNPDESpermit for the SVA site,therewereno

violationsfor oil, greaseorpH (Trial at 284,285).Therewere afew violationsfor total

suspendedsolids. Theseviolationsresultedasaresultof intensestormeventsthat causeddirt

from neighboringfarmfields to washinto SVA’s retentionpond(Trial at 285).

TheDMR formsthataresubmittedbyNPDESpermitholderslike SVA arereceivedand

tract by theIEPA Division of WaterPollution ControlComplianceAssuranceSection(Trial at

33). At thetime that SVA wassubmittingDMRs, theIEPAwasreceivingalot ofDMR forms.

Errorsoccurredin handlingthelargevolumesof DMRs in areaslike failing to datestampall of

theDMRs received(Trial at 36). Therewasno formalqualityassuranceprocedureinstitutedby

theJEPAat that time to determinewhetherornot thepeoplewho wereactuallyloggingthe

informationweredoingsocorrectly(Trial at 65). Therewere situationsin theIEPA Division of

WaterPollution ControlComplianceAssuranceSectionwerereportsweremislogged(Trial at

66).

In the late 1980’sandtheearlyI 990’s,DMRs wererecordedby theIEPA Division of

WaterControlComplianceAssuranceSectionin aDMR Submissionrecord. A I)MR

submissionrecordis a logbookof a list ofNPDESpermitnumberswherethe dateofDMR

submissionsarerecorded.Theprocedurewasabandonedby the1EPA in 1997an.dreplacedby



anelectroniclog in system(Trial at 48).

TheDMR submissionrecordsthat includedtheNPDESpermitheldby SVA failed to

recordthefactthatDMRshadbeensubmittedby SVA during somemonthscoveredby the

permit (Trial at 50-53). While therewasno indictionthatanyoneatJEPAcheckedto determine

that the recordingswereaccurate(Trial at 66),the lackofarecordofsubmissioncreatedan

assumptionthatthereportswerenot submitted.

ThepeopleatIEPA who handledDMRs werenotnecessarilysupposedto reportfailures

to files DMRs andIEPA’s recordsdo not indicatethat SVA wasevernotifiedthat theIEPA had

no recordof SVA’s DMRs for somemonths(Trial at 68,69). SVA hadno wayofknowingthat

IEPA did not havearecordoftheirsubmittalsofDMRs. WhenSVA wasmadeawareof thefact

that the IEPA did not havea recordof receivingall oftheDMRs that SVA wasrequiredto

submit, SVA submittedcopiesofthe lab analysisreportsof its outfall samplesthat wereprepared

by NorthshoreSanitaryDistrict andcopiesofsomeof themissingDMRs to theIllinois Attorney

General’sOffice (Trial at 317,318).This activity tookplacein themid-1990’s(Trial at 318, 478-

486). Basedon this submittalof informationthatindicatedthattherequiredsamplesweretaken,

testedandreportedto theIEPA, SVA wasleadto believethat the issueregardingthefailure to

submitDMRs wasresolved(Trial at 322, Respondents’Exhibit 1,2,3 and4).

TheDMR reportoriginally submittedby SVA for themonthof February1991,contained

thesamedataasthereportsubmittedby SVA for themonthofJanuary,1991 (Trial at40).

Duringthis period,Bob Christiansen— theSVA employeeresponsiblefor collectingdatafor and

completingandsubmittingSVA reports— wasoutofwork becauseof aheartattack. (Trial at

292). Thepersonat SVA who submittedtheDMR in Februaryof 1991 usedthe datafrom the

testofthesampletakenin themonthofJanuaryof 1991 insteadofthedatafrom thetestofthe



sampletakenin February1991 whencompletingtheDMR report (Trial at 292). WhenSVA

realizedthis mistake,a correctedDMR reportfor Februaryof 1991 wassubmitted (Trial at485).

SVA’s NPDESpermitthatwas issuedin SVA in April of 1986,expiredin Marchof

1991 (Trial at 41). Underthepermitconditions,SVA wasrequiredto reapplyfor apermit 180

daysprior to theexpirationoftheirexistingpermit (Trial at41). However,prior to thetime that

SVA wouldhavebeenrequiredto reapplyfor anNPDESpermit theywereadvisedbothby the

Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgencyandby their consultantswith expertisein NPDES

requirementsthattheydid not needaNPDESpermitfor SVA site in Grayslake(Trial at 322).

SVA wasof theopinionthattheirsitewouldbecoveredby ablanketpermit that wasbeing

grantedto theIllinois AsphaltPavingAssociation,theIllinois Truckers’Associationorsome

othertradeassociationthat coveredSVA operations(Trial at322). Theircompetitorsand

peopleSVA dealtwith in tradeassociationswerereceivingpermitsunderblanketpermit(Trial at

322). SVA discussedtheideawith arepresentativeofIEPA in SpringfieldandSVA wasleadto

believethat theywouldbecoveredby ablanketpermitfor NPDES(Trial at 322). As aresult,

SVA did not think it was requiredto reapplyfor an individual NPDESpermit for its siteand

consequentlydid not submitthe applicationwhenit wasdue(Trial at 324-325).

In Illinois, thereis ageneralpermit for stormwaterdischargesoff of industrialproperties

thatrequireno monitoringandno submittalof DMRs. The siteowneroroperatoris simply

requiredto developastormwaterpollutionpreventionplanto assurethatthefacility maximizes

its efforts to minimizeany impactin its stormwaterrunoff(Trial at 416,417). SVA shouldhave

qualified for this typeofpermit.

It is veryquestionablethat SVA wasrequiredto reapplyfor anNPDESpermit. Theonly

experttestimonyofferedattrial wasthat an individualpermitwasnotrequiredfor thesite.(Trial



at 416, 417). However,SVA did submitthe applicationfor renewalof its permit (Trial at458).

Theysenta letterto theJEPArequestingan extensionofthedeadlinefor filing theNPDES

applicationandthensubmittedtheapplicationon June5, 1991 (Trial at 42). To thisdate,the

IEPA hasnot reviewedSVA’s NPDES applicationandhasnot issuedapermit for thesite (Trial

at 44).

A farm drainagetile ran throughSVA’s propertytowardtheAvon-FremontDrainage

Ditch. Theoutfall from thefarm drainagetile drainsinto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch due

eastoftheSVA site.(Trialat 222,223) It wasneverdeterminedhow manydrain tiles beyondthe

SVA site fed into thefarm tile in that area.(Trial at 241). Underits NPDESpermit,SVA was

allowedto dischargestormwaterinto GraysLakethrougha stormsewer.(Trial at 221).

FromDecemberof 1994to April of 1995therewasadischargeinto theAvon-Fremont

Ditch eastof theSVA site(Trial at 221,359).TheJEPA,USEPAandothersfailedto determine

thesourceofthedischarge.(Trial at234-238). Duringthis period,theRespondentsweredoing

excavationworkon theirpropertyanddiscoveredadraintile (Trial at 340). Theycontactedthe

environmentalconsultingfirm ofHuff andHuff anddiscussedthis matterwith JimHuff.(Trial at

341). Theysuspectedthatthedraintile wasrelatedto thedischargeto theAvon Ditch (Trial at

341).

On theadviseofandwith theassistanceof its consultingengineer—JimHuff ofHuff and

Huff, Inc. — SVA pluggedthedraintile, reportedthereleaseto theNationalResponseCenteras

requiredunder40 CFR 112 andworkedwith its engineerandotherSVA employeesandoutside

contractorsto addresstheproblemon avoluntarybasis(Trial at 340, 341). No releaseshave

takenplacesinceSVA beganit voluntaryeffort (Trial at 348). Upondiscoveryofthedrainage

tile, SVA tookthe leadin addressingtheproblemson theAvonDitch andconnectedbodieson a



voluntarybasis(Trial at 347-351). Although, SVA wassold andno longerexistsasan entity,

EdwinFrederickandRichardFrederickcontinueto fundtheeffort to eliminateanypotential

sourceof arelease(Trial at 368).

LACHES

“Lachesis anequitabledoctrinewhichprecludestheassertionofaclaim by a litigant

whoseunreasonabledelayin raisingthatclaimhasprejudicedtheopposingparty.” Riverview

FS, Inc. V. Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency,PCB97-226at 1 (May 3, :2001 citing Tully

v. Illinois, 143 Ill. 2d 425, 432, 574N.E.2d 659, 662 (1991). “Therearetwo principalelements

of laches:lackofduediligenceby apartyassertinga claimandprejudiceto theopposingparty.”

Peoplev. Royster-Clark,Inc., PCB02-8at 6 (January24, 2002)citing VanMilligan v. Boardof

Fire andPoliceCommission,158 ILL.2d at 89, 630 N.E.2dat 833. In thecasebeforetheBoard,

it is unquestionablethat theComplainanthasnotbeendiligent in bringingits allegationagainst

theRespondentsEdwin L. FrederickandRichardJ.Frederick.

Theallegationsthat arethebasisfor theComplaintdatebackeighteen(18) yearsto 1986

andeventhemostrecentallegationsundertheamendedcomplaintsoccurredovernine(9) years

agoin 1995. On oraboutNovember3, 1995, theComplainant’sfiled acomplaintin theabove

captionedmatteragainsttheRespondent,SkokieValleyAsphalt,Inc. Inthe complaint,the

Complainantallegesviolationsdatingfrom Mayof 1986 to March 1, 1991. Onor about

December29, 1997,theComplainant’sfiled aFirst AmendedComplaintin theabovecaptioned

matter. In theFirst AmendedComplaint,no additionalRespondentswerenamed..TheFirst

AmendedCompliantincludedanadditionalcountallegingwaterpollutionunderSection12(a)of

theAct, 415 ILCS 5/12 (a) (1996)for actionsthat allegedlyoccurredfrom December23, 1994

throughApril 18, 1995. On January21, 2000,Respondent,SkokieValleyAsphalt Co., Inc.



servedits responseto theComplainant’sFirst SetofInterrogatoriesandits Responseto the

Complainant’sFirstRequestfor ProductionofDocuments.

By orderof theBoardHearingOfficer, all discoveryin thismatterwasorderedto be

completedby October20, 2000. (HearingOfficerOrderofApril 7, 2000.) TheRespondent

compliedwith thisdiscoveryschedule.On September6, 2001,theComplainantrequestedan

additionaldiscoveryschedule.Overtheobjectionsof theRespondents,theBoardHearing

Officer extendedthediscoveryscheduleandorderedthatall discoverybe closedby February1,

2002 (HearingOfficer OrderofApril 7, 2000). AgaintheRespondentcompliedwith the

discoveryschedule.No additionalinformationconcerningtheliability of theRespondentor

otherpartieswasrequestedorprofferedduringthis additionaldiscoveryperiod.

On July 26, 2002,theComplainant’sfiled aSecondAmendedComplaint. In theSecond

AmendedComplaint,theComplainant’snamedEdwinL. FrederickJr., individually andas

ownerandPresidentof SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc., andtheRespondentRichardJ.

Frederick,individually andasownerandVicePresidentof SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc. as

additional Respondents.

On December20, 2002,theRespondentsfiled theirAnswerandAffirmative Defenseto

Complainant’sSecondAmendedComplaint. In theirAnswerandAffirmative Defenseto

Complainant’sSecondAmendedComplaint,theRespondentsstateanaffirmative defensethat

the Complainantshouldnotbeallowedto amendits Complaintto includeEdwin L. Frederick

Jr., .individually and asownerandPresidentofSkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc., andthe

RespondentRichardJ. Frederick,individually andas ownerandVicePresidentof SkokieValley

AsphaltCo., Inc. underthe doctrineoflachesandequitableestoppel.(Respondents’Answerof
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December20,2002 at 8.)

The Complainantwasawareof therolesofRespondentsEdwin L. FrederickandRichard

J. Frederickin theallegedviolationsprior to thefiling oftheoriginalcomplaintin 1995andall

discoverypertinentto thepartiesinvolved in this matterwascompletedin theyear2000. No

newinformationor additionalallegationsinvolving RespondentsEdwin L. Frederickand

RichardJ. Frederickhasbeenintroducedbythe Complainanttojustify theuntimelyadditionof

theseparties. Theuntimelyadditionofthesepartiesis solelytheresultof a lackofduediligence

by theComplainant.

As adirect resultofthe Complainant’slackof duediligence,the RespondentsRichard

FrederickandEdwin Frederickhavebeenprejudicedin theirability to producerecords,recall

witnessesandremembereventsrelevantto their defensein this matter. In 1998, duringthe

periodoftheComplainant’slackof duediligence,theassetsoftheRespondentSVA were sold

to athird party(Trial at 435,475). Theseassetsincludedall oftherecordsof SVA including

recordson NPDESpermits,responsibilitiesofemployeesincludingEdwin Frederickand

RichardFrederick,recordsonDMR submittals,recordson pastoperationsat theplant, records

on environmentalissuesandothermattersinvolvedin this Complaint. Subsequentto acquiring

theassetsof SVA, thenewownersdecidedtheyhadno needfor therecordsof SVA and

disposedoftherecords.

Edwin andRichardFrederickhadno controloverthenewownersdecisionto disposeof

theserecordsand alsohadno reasonto suspectthat theserecordswould beofvalueto them.

This litigation hadstartedtwo yearsearlierandtheFrederickswerenot namedRespondents.

Therewasno knewinformationdivulgedthroughdiscoverythatwould leadareasonableperson

10



to suspectthat theywould benamedasRespondents.Therefore,theymadeno attemptto retain

anyof SVA’s records. Forsimilar reasons,thedid notretainanyoftheirpersonalrecords

relevantto SVA beyondtheperiodstheserecordswould havebeenrequiredfor otherpurposes.

Lachesis basedon thenotionthatcourtswill not readilycometo theaid of apartywho

has“slept on his rightsto thedetrimentoftheopposingparty.” RiverviewFS,Inc. v. Illinois

EnvironmentalProtectionAgency,PCB97-226at 5 (May 3, 2001)citing Tully, 143 Ill. 2d 425,

432, 574 N.E. 2d 659, 662 (1991). In this matter,theComplainant’slackofduediligencehasin

factresultedin a detrimentto theRespondentsEdwin L. FrederickandRichardJi• Frederickand

theBoardshouldnotcometo theaid oftheComplainantsin whatappearsto benothingmore

thana backdooreffort to reopendiscoveryandto increasetheRespondentsexpenseand

aggravationin defendingthemselvesandtheircompany.

In Hickeyv. Illinois CentralRailroadCo., 35 Ill. 2d 427, 220N.E.2d415 (1966),the

Illinois SupremeCourtestablishedthe standardfor applyinglachesto thestate. in that case,the

courtstated:

It is, of course,elementarythatordinarylimitationsstatutesandprinciplesof
lachesandestoppeldo not applyto publicbodiesunderusualcircumstances,and
thereluctanceofcourtsto hold governmentbodiesestoppedto asserttheir claims
is particularlyapparentwhenthegovernmentalunit is theState. Therearesound
basisfor suchpolicy. ~ {A]pplication of lachesorestoppeldoctrinesmay
impair thefunctioningofthestatein thedischargeofits governmentfunction,and
[]valuablepublic interestsmaybejeopardizedor lostby its negligence,mistakes
or inattentionofpublic officials.

But it seemsequallytruethatthereluctanceto applyequitableprinciplesagainst
theStatedoesnot amountto absoluteimmunity oftheStatefrom (achesand
estoppelunderall circumstances.Theimmunityis a qualifiedone andthe
qualificationsarevariouslystated.It is sometimessaidlachesand.estoppelwill
notbeappliedagainstthestatein its governmental,public orsovereigncapacity,

11



andit cannotbeestoppedfrom its exerciseof its policepowersor in its powerof
taxationorthecollectionofrevenue.

It has,however,beenstatedwith frequencythattheStatemaybeestoppedwhenactingin

a proprietary,asdistinguishedfrom its sovereignor governmental,capacityand even,undermore

compellingcircumstances,whenactingin its governmentalcapacity.

Therefore,lachescanbeappliedto thestateunder“compellingcircumstances”,even

whenthestateis actingin agovernmentalcapacity.Peoplev. StateOil Company,William

Anestet. al. PCB 97-103(May18, 2000)citing Hickeyv. Illinois CentralRailroadCo., 35 Ill. 2d

427,220 N.E.2d415 (1966).

In thepresentcase,it is not apparentthattheState’sability to dischargeits government

functionis impairedorthatanyvaluablepublic interestis jeopardizedor lost if thedoctrinesof

lachesandequitableestoppelareimposedto disallowthenamingofadditionalRespondents.

Thegrantingofthis motionto dismisswill notactasimpairmentoftheState’sright to discharge

its governmentfunctionandprotectpublic interestsbecausetheStatewill still beableto protect

thepublic interestandperformits governmentfunctionby enforcingagainsttheremainingparty

— SkokieValley AsphaltInc. DismissingtheRespondentsunderthe doctrineof lEacheswill allow

theRespondentstheprotectionagainstundueprejudiceandtheClaimantsefforts to use

administrativeproceedingsto increasethecost andeffort to theRespondentsofdefending

themselvesin this matter, withoutjeopardizingtheState’sability to pursueits caseagainstthe

Respondentit selectedastheculpablepartyatthetime it wasin possessionofall discovery

material,hadfull knowledgeofall ofthepartiesinvolved,knewtheroleseachpartyplayedin

thematterandwasfully informedofall otherfactsof thecase.
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Thereis nothingin therecordto ensurethattheClaimant’sunjustifiabledelayin naming

theadditionalRespondentswassolely theresultof a lackof duediligence,negligence,mistake

or inattention. TheRespondentsoffer thattheamendingof thecomplaintto includeadditional

Respondentwithout addingallegationswasan attemptto extenddiscoveryin thismatter,

increasetheRespondents’costandeffort in counteringtheClaimant’sproceduralmaneuvering

andfurtherdelaythehearingandfinal determinationby theBoard.

TheBoardneedsto releasetheRespondents,RichardJ. FrederickandEdwinL. Frederick

from liability in this matternot onlyto protecttheRespondentsagainsttheprejudicethathas

resultedfrom theunreasonabledelayof theClaimantsin namingadditionalRespondentsbut also

to protecttheBoardfrom becomingaharbingerfor indifferentor intentionallymanipulative

prosecution.Underthestandardestablishedin theHickeydecision,“compellingcircumstances”

mustexist for theBoardto invokelachesandequitableestoppelagainstthestatewhenthestate

is acting in its governmentalcapacity.Peoplev. StateOil Company,William Anestet. al. PCB

97-103(May 18, 2000)citing Hickey. The“compelling circumstances”in this matter,include

thefact that theRespondents’wereunableto fully defendthemselvesagainstchargesofalleged

incidentsthat occurredup to seventeen(17) yearsago,five (5) yearsaftertheRespondents

terminatedtheiremploymentwith theentity involved in thematterandthree(3) yearsafter

discoveryrelatedto the liability ofthepartieswascompleted.The“compellingcircumstances”

includethefact that aparty in thepositionoftheRespondentsshouldhaveeveryright to rely on

therepresentationsandactionsoftheStateto concludethatit will notbe requiredto defend

themselvesagainstallegationsraisedwell aftertheirretirementandafterit hadjustifiably

determinedthat it hadcompletedits responsesto discoveryrequests.
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FortheBoardto find that “compellingcircumstances”arenot establishedby thefact

patternin this matter,theBoardwouldneedto find thattheterm“compellingcircumstances”has

no meaningandthatlachescanneverbe appliedagainsttheState. Sucharuling would be

contraryto thedecisionsofthe Illinois SupremeCourt on the issue. The Illinois SupremeCourt

hasalso statedthat“merenonactionof governmentalofficers is notsufficient to work an

estoppel... theremustbesomepositiveactsby theofficials which mayhaveinducedtheactions

of theadverseparties” ~ SeealsoVanMilligan v. BoardofFire andPoliceCommissioners,

158 Ill 2d 85, 630 N.E.2d 830 (1994);Peoplev. ESGWatts(February5, 1998),PCB96-107at

7; Peoplev. Bigelow GroupInc. (January8, 1998),PCB97-217, at 2.

In thecasebeforetheBoard,thefiling of theFirst AmendedComplainton December29,

1997without namingtheRespondentsasadditionalparties,thefailureof theStateto namethe

Respondentsaspartiesafterrequestingandreceivingall informationconcerningall oftheparties

involved afterthediscoveryperiodthat endedon October20, 2000 andthefactthat the

Claimantsrequestedaseconddiscoveryperiodwithoutmaking arequestoftheClaimantsfor

additionalinformationregardingtheparties,all werepositiveactsby the officials which induced

the Respondentsto takeactionswhich haveprejudicedtheRespondentsability to properly

defendthemselvesin this matter.

Wherefore,theRespondentrespectfullyrequeststhattheBoarddismisstheRespondent

Edwin L. FrederickJr.,.individuallyandasownerandPresidentofSkokieValleyAsphaltCo.,

Inc., andtheRespondentRichardJ.Frederick,individually andasownerandVicePresidentof

SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc. underthedoctrinesoflachesandequitableestoppel.

LEGAL STANDARD OF LIABILITY
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BecausetheIllinois AttorneyGeneral’sOffice introducedthis actionagainstthe

Respondents,it hastheburdenofproofin this case. (415ILCS 5/31 (e) (2002). TheIllinois

AttorneyGeneral’sOffice needsto showby a“preponderanceoftheevidence”that theviolations

did occurandtheindividual Respondentswerethepartiesresponsiblefor causingtheviolation.

TheComplainantsnamedRichardFrederickandEdwinFrederick,bothindividually and

as officersofSVA. Theburdenofproofforindividualswouldbe theaforestated

“preponderanceoftheevidence”standard.However,to holdtheFredericksresponsibleas

corporateofficers, the Complainantmustmeetthestandardofproofestablishedby Illinois law

for corporateofficers in environmentalenforcementcases.

Thestandardfor theburdenofprooffor corporateofficer in Illinois environmental

enforcementactionsis establishedPeoplev. C.J.R.Processing,Inc et. al. 269Ill. App. 3d 1013,

647 N.E. 2d 1035 (3d Dist. 1995). TheC. J.R. Courtheld that a corporateofficercanonly be

held liable for his company’senvironmentalviolationsif hewaspersonallyinvolved in or

activelyparticipatedin a violation oftheAct, or if hehadtheability or the authorityto control

theactsor omissionsthat gaverise to theviolation (Id. at 1018).

TheComplainantpresentedinsufficientevidenceat trial to hold eitherRichardFrederick

or EdwinFrederickliable underanyoftheCounts. In fact, theFrederickscannot he held liable

of theviolationsof theCountsrelatedto failure to complywith thetermsoftheNPDESpermit

becausetheywerenot thepermitholdersandhadno duty to complywith thepermit

requirements.Similarly, theywerenot ownersof thepropertyandcannot be held liable, as

individuals for anyreleasefrom theproperty.For eitherRichardorEdwin Frederickto be held

liable in thismatter,the standardestablishedin Peoplev. C.J.R.Processing,Inc etal. that the
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officerwaspersonallyinvolved in or activelyparticipatedin aviolation of theAct, or if he had

theability or theauthorityto controltheactsor omissionsthatgaveriseto the violation mustbe

established.Theapplicationofthisstandardto theevidencepresentedin this casedoesnot

supportan argumentby the ComplainantsthatRichardandEdwinFrederickwereresponsiblefor

theviolation,evenif it is shownthataviolation occurred.

ANALYSIS OF THE CULPABILITY OF THE RESPONDENTS

COUNT I

TheComplainantmaintainsthattheRespondents,SVA, Edwin L. Frederick,Jr.

andRichardJ. Frederick,violatedSection12(f) oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/12(f)2002by failing to

complywith NPDESPermit. The Complainant’scontentionthat theRespondents,Edwin L.

Frederick,Jr. andRichardFrederick,violatedtherequirementsoftheNPDESPermitthat the

IEPA issuedto SVA arefrivolous and contradictthetestimonyprovidedby thewitnessesin

supportofthe casepresentedby theJEPA. Mr. Michael Garretson,theactingmanagerof the

ComplianceAssuranceSectionof theIllinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency,testifiedthat

SVA wastheresponsiblepartyfor reportingtheDMRs undertheNPDESPermit (Trial at 70).

TheNPDESPermit requirestheperrniteeto submittheDMR. (Trial at 74). Mr. Garretsonhad

no information whichwould leadhim to believethat theRespondent,Edwin L. Frederick,Jr.,

actuallyparticipatedin anyaspectoftheDMRs submittedby SVA (Trial at 69). The

certificationon theDMR, signedby theRespondent,RichardFrederick,in his capacityas Vice-

PresidentofSVA, merelyrequiresthe signatorto attestto thebestofhisknowledgeandbelief

that the informationprovidedin theDMR is true,completeandaccurate.(SeeComplainant’s

Exhibit 3). Thecertificationdoesnot requirethis signatorto verify the informationcontainedin
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theDMR. TheDMR merelyrequeststhat thesignatorreportto thebestofhisknowledge (Trial

at 75). TheComplainanthasfailedto presentanyevidencein supportof its allegationsthat the

Respondents,EdwinL. Frederick,Jr. andRichardFrederick,wereindividually responsiblefor

submittingtheDMRs underthepermit thattheIEPA issuedto SVA. TheComplainant’s

ClosingArgumentandPostTrial Brief lumpstheRespondentstogetherandfails to makethe

differentiationbetweentheRespondentsbasedon theirresponsibilitiesundertheNPDESPermit.

(SectionB of theClosingArgumentandPostTrial Brief oftheComplainant).The

Complainant’sClosingArgumentandPostTrial Brief ignoresthetestimonyof Mr. Michael

Garretsonandexemplifiesa themethatrunsthroughouttheComplainant’scase,namelya

perpetualfailure to meetits burdenofproofandto providesufficientevidencein supportofits

allegations.

Accordingto Mr. Michael Garretson,thepurposebehindtheDMRs is to sendout

acomplianceletterif aDMR is not in complianceandto gaincompliancefrom thepermiteeas

soonaspossible. (Trial at 87). Theindividual from theIEPAwho reviewstheDMR submitted

would sendout a complianceletter,if the individualreviewingthereportthoughtsomethingwas

suspiciousaboutareportor aseriesofreportssubmittedby permitee.(Trial at 89). Mr.

Garretsoncouldnot find thelog booksoftheDMRs submittedby SVA from theyears1994and

1995 (Trial at 49). Betweenthelate 80’s andearly90’s, Mr. MichaelGarretsonwasnotawareof

the Illinois EPA suspectingthat SVA hadsubmittedsuspiciousDMRs (Trial at 89). Mr.

Garretsondid not look for reportsor othercommunicationsfrom SVA correctingits DMRs (See

Trial at 91). At the directionoftheAttorneyGeneral’soffice, Mr. Garretsongatheredthe

informationregardingtheDMRs submittedby SVA (Trial at 95-97). UndertheNPDESPermit,
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SVA wasonly requiredto maintainits DMRs for threeyearsfrom theeffectivedateofthepermit

(Trial at 103-106). TheComplainanthassubmittedonly two complianceletterssentfrom the

Illinois EPA to SVA datedOctober31, 1988andJanuary5, 1990 (SeeComplainant’sExhibit

19). In responseto theOctober31, 1988complianceletteroftheJEPA,SVA respondedon

November9, 1988 statingthat it wasunawarethat it wasobligatedto submitDMRs aslong as

SVA wasnot discharginginto the area.In addition,SVA explainedthatit wasunableup to a

few monthsprior to theletterto obtainaneweasementto replacethe existingtile andwasnot

ableto dischargeinto thearea. SVA indicatedthat it wouldsubmitreportsasrequired. (See

SVA letterdatedNovember9, 1988presentedin complainant’sExhibit 19).

In responseto the letteroftheIllinois EPA datedJanuary5, 1990.,SVA senta

letterapologizingfor its oversightin submittingtheDMR and explainedthatanewlyhired

employeewasassignedthetaskoftakingthesampling,but forgot to do so. SVA explainedits

correctivemeasuresandstatedthatthesamplefrom January1990hadalreadybeentakento the

lab (SeeSVA letterdatedJanuary17, 1990presentingin complainant’sExhibit 19). The

complainanthasnotpresentedanyevidenceattheIEPA issuedadditionalcompliancelettersto

SVA regardingsuspiciousormissingDMRs. It canbereasonablydeducted,basedon the

testimonyof Mr. MichaelGarretson,thattheotherallegedincidencesofwhich thecomplainant

allegesSVA failed to complywith therequirementsoftheNPDESPermitby timely filing

DMRs, weredeterminedby IEPA to be insignificant anddid not merit evenacomplianceletter.

TheAttorneyGeneral’sOffice hasalsomanipulatedtheevidenceby failing to requestMr.

Michael Garretsonto searchfor DMRs submittedby SVA correctingtheallegedlyduplicative

DMRs submittedby SVA althoughtheAttorneyGeneral’sOffice waswell awarethatSVA had

18



affirmativelystatedit timely submittedcorrectiveDMRs oncethis situationwas discoveredby

SVA. ThatSVA hadaffirmatively statedin its pleadingsthat it hadsubmittedDMRs in

correctionoftheduplicativeDMR onceSVA becameawareof it. However,SVA wasunableto

supportits positionwith documentationon accountofthecomplainantsfailure to bringthe

presentcauseofactionin atimely manner.

Further,theJEPAhashistoricallymisloggedinformationsubmittedin theDMRs,

misplacedreports,misfiled reports,sentreportsto thewrongindividualsandsentdocumentsto

thewrongregions (SeeTrial at 66 and 197). At no point in time did therepresentativeofthe

IEPA who wasresponsiblefor verifying theinformationcontainedin theDMR submittedby

SVA, namelyMr. ChristopherKallis, Evernotify SVA thatthe informationcontainedin its

DMRs was inaccurateorsuspicious.(SeeTrial at 195). TheComplainanthasfailedto present

anyevidencethat Mr. Kallis notified SVA thatthe informationcontainedin its DMRs was

suspicious,unusuallyelevatedfor thetypeofindustryandregionor inaccuratein anyway. The

representativeoftheIEPA, Ms. JanHopper,whoseresponsibilitywasto reviewtheDMRs

submittedby SVA andcomparetheinformationin thereportto theNPDESPermit to determine

if aviolation hadoccurredwasnot evencalledasawitnessby theComplainant. (Trial at67). If

Ms. Hopperdid not receiveaDMR reportfrom aNPDESpermitee,shewasnotsupposeto

reportthemissingDMR ortakecorrectiveactionunlessapatternofnon-submissionoccurred.

TheJEPA,would only issueacomplianceinquiry letterto thepermitteeonceapatternof non-

submissionoccurred.(Trial at 68). Only theAttorneyGeneralhasmadeanissueof theDMRs

andthecompliancerequirementsoftheNPDESpermitofSVA. TheJEPA,thegovernmental

entity in chargeofadministering,reviewinganddeterminingcomplianceoftheNPDESpermit
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andtheDMRs, throughits actions,hasacceptedtheDMRs ofSVA andthedeterminedSVA’s

DMRs andpatternsosubmittingDMRs substantiallycompliedwith theNPDES permit. The

Complainanthaspresentedno evidenceto supportthat theIllinois EPA atthetime ofreceiving

theDMRs of SVA thoughtthatthe levelsofTSSreportedin theDMRs weresignificantor

meritedcorrectiveactionon eithertheEPAor SVA. Onthecontrary,Mr. Michael Garretson,

theComplainant’sexperton therequirementsundertheNPDESpermit andtheinterpretationof

DMRs,opinedthatnumerousfactorsthataretemporaryandbeyondthecontrolofthepermitee,

caneffect the levelsofTSSreportedin aDMR, includingexcessiverain (Trial at 78). SVA

substantiallycompliedwith its NPDESpermit althoughit wasundersignificantlymore stringent

requirementsregardingeffluent limit levelsthanotherindustrialfacilities acrosstheUnited

States(Trial at414-415).

COUNT II

TheComplainantallegesthat SVA failed to renewits NPDESpermit in atimely

manner.Theargumentspresentedin CountI aboveregardingtherequirementsofthe

Respondent’s,Edwin L. Frederick,Jr. andRichardFrederick,undertheNPDESPermitare

applicableto CountII. ThepermiteeundertheNPDESpermitwasSVA. TheRespondents,

Edwin L. Frederick,Jr. andRichardFrederick,hadno obligationindividually to renewthe

NPDESpermit. A violation ofSection309.102(a) of theIllinois Pollution ControlBoardWater

PollutionRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code309.102(a), if any,wouldbe limited to theactionsof

SVA andwould not applyto theRespondentsEdwin L. Frederick,Jr. andRichardFrederick.

TheactionsofSVA werenot maliciousandwerebaseduponareasonable

interpretationof its obligationsundertheAct. Complainant’sExhibit 19, in particulartheSVA

20



letterdatedApril 22, 1991 aswell astheSVA letterdatedMay7, 1991 clearlyshowsthat SVA

uponadviseofits retainedcivil engineerwere diligently attemptingto determinewhetherSVA

wasrequiredto renewits NPDESpermit. Onceadvisedby its environmentalengineering

consultantthat a NPDESpermitmaybe requiredundertheamendedAct, SVA requesteda

reasonableextensionofthreeweeksto file its application. TheComplainanthasnotprovided

anyevidencethat therequestsfor anextensionoftime for SVA to file anapplicationwas

rejectedbytheIEPA. To this date,whetherSVA wasrequiredto renewits NPDES permitin

1991,is questionable.Accordingto theonly experttestimonyon this issue, SVA waiseligible

for a GeneralStormWaterPermit insteadofan individual StormWaterPermitandwasnot

requiredto file DMRs (Trial at 416-417).

COUNT III

TheallegationsoftheComplainantthatSVA failed to takewaterdischarge

samplesat apoint representativeofthedischargebeforeit enteredthestreamis basedon pure

speculationandconjecture.TheComplainanthasnotprovidedanytestimonythroughits

witnessesthat thelevelsofTSSreportedin theDMRs submittedby SVA wereunusualor

aberrantwhencomparedto othersimilar industriesin thesameregion. Although Mr. Kallis was

the responsiblefield representativeoftheJEPAto determinewhetherSVA’s DMRs were

accurate,hedid not testify thatheevertook samplesandcomparedthemto thetestresults

reportedin SVAsDMRs. TheComplainantreliessolelyon Mr. Kallis’ opinionexpressedin his

reportdatedAugust9, 2001that referencedan inspectionvisit on May21, 1991 whereMr. Kallis

concludedthat SVA did nothavearepresentativesamplingpointbecausehe left thepremises

when“tempersflared” andtherewassomehostility on thepartofEdwin L. Frederick,Jr. and
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RichardFrederick. Mr. Kallis thoughttheywantedhim to go sohejust left to avoida

confrontation (Trial at 38-42). However,the lasttime Mr. Kallis took samplesofthedischarge

waterwasin 1992, SVA hadanaccessiblerepresentativesamplingpoint. (Trial at 192). Mr.

Kallis did notknow how long theaccessiblerepresentativesamplingpoint hadbeenin

existence,but believedthepointmaynothavebeenpresentin 1987 (Trial at 19:2-193).

Complainanthasnot establishedthattherepresentativedischargepoint observed,by Mr. Kallis in

early1992was notpresentsincetheissuanceof theNPDESPermit to SVA. Sincethealleged

incidentby Mr. Kallis hehasneverexperiencedany furtherhostilitiesalthoughhehasbeenout

to theSVA sitemorethanfive times andtook samplesduringthoseothervisits (Trial at 164-

166).

TheComplainant’sallegationthat SVA failedto takewaterdischargesamplesat a

pointrepresentativeofthedischargebeforethewaterenteredthe streamhasnotbeensupported

by anyreliableevidencewhetherfactualor opinion. It is curiousthat JEPAfirst inspectedthe

SVA site for arepresentativedischargepoint nearlysix yearsaftertheNPDESpermit wasissued

to SVA. Thestatementby the Complainantthat theRespondents“did not maintainan accessible

affluent samplingpoint for thedischargefrom theSVA lagoontherefore,did notand couldnot

takesamplesrepresentativeof thedischarge”is basedon the speculationofMr. Kallis regarding

whentheSVA establishedtherepresentativedischargepoint.

COUNT IV

TheComplainanthasfailed to provideanyevidencethattheSVA facility wasthe

sourceoftheoily substancefoundin theAvon-Fremontdrainageditch. Further,the

Complainant’sallegationsthat theRespondents,Edwin L. Frederick,Jr. andRichardFrederick,
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wereresponsiblefor thepresenceof an oily substanceon theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch are

baseless.

TheComplainantreliesuponpurespeculationand conjectureto support

allegationsthat theRespondentswereresponsiblefor thepresenceofanoily substanceon the

Avon-FremontDrainageDitch. Mr. Kallis, whoinspectedtheSVA facility onMarch22, 1995

andwalkedall over thepropertyaswell aslooked intoamanholelocatedon the propertyof SVA

did not find any evidencethat thecontaminationwascoming from theSVA facility (Trial at

158). AlthoughMr. Kallis inspectedSVA’s propertyin Marchof 1995hedid not takeany

samplesof materialshesawattheSVA site to analyzethemandcomparethosesampleswith

samplesfrom thedrainageditch (Trial at 176). Mr. Kallis readily admitsthathis opinionthat

SVA wasthesourceofthecontaminationin theAvon-FremontDrainageDitchwaspure

speculation.(Trial at 176). Hewasnot awareof anyentity takingsamplesfrom SVA afterthe

contaminationof theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch wasdiscoveredto comparethesamples

from SVA with thematerial foundin thedrainageditch (Trial at 177). Mr. Kallis statedthat he

wasawareotherdraintilescontributedto thefarmtile that wasemittingtheoily substanceinto

theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch (Trial at 177), butheneverlookedinto thesourcesofthose

contributorydraintiles (Trial at 178). Mr. Kallis admittedthat theoily substancecoming from

the farmtile couldhavecomefrom sourcesotherthantheSVA site. (Trial at 178). Mr. Kallis

couldevenstatewhethertheoily substancehe collectedfrom theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch

wasgasoline,agasolinebasedproduct, motoroil, dieselfuel or anyotherproduct (Trial at 180).

Further,Mr. Kallis testifiedthat he hadno informationthat EdwinL. Frederick,

Jr. oranyoneat Edwin L. Frederick,Jr.’s directionplacedtheoily substancein thefarmtile
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which trainedinto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch (Trial 182). Mr. Kallis alsohadno

informationwhatsoeverthatRichardFrederickoranyoneatRichardFrederick’sdirectionplace

anoily substancein thefarm tile which drainedinto theAvon-Fremontdrainageditch. (Trial at

182). Mr. Kallis hadno informationwhichwould leadanyoneto believethatanyonefrom SVA

actuallyplacedtheoily substancein thefarmtile that drainedinto theAvon-FrernontDrainage

Ditch. (Trial at 183).

TheopinionofMr. ChristopherKallis andMr. Don Klopke, representativesof the

IEPA, relied heavilyon thereportofMs. Betty Lavis oftheUnitedStatesEnvironmental

ProtectionAgency(USEPA)datedMay3, 1995presentedasExhibit 25 (Trial at 184 and227

respectively~.ThepertinentsectionofMs. Lavis’ reportappearsin thesecondparagraphunder

sectionIII on page2 whereinshestatesthatshemettheownersat thesitewho saidtheyfounda

leakandwould addresstheproblem. Basedon this statementMr. Kallis andMr. Klopke through

theconclusionthat a leakyundergroundstoragetankon theSVA propertywasthesourceofthe

oily contaminationfoundin theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch. USEPAwasalsotold bythe

consultantfor SVA, Mr. JamesHuff, in Mayof 1995 thathethoughta leakyundergroundstorage

tankon theSVA propertythepossiblesourceofcontaminationin theAvon-FrernontDrainage

Ditch. (Trial at 425). Mr. Huff’s opinionregardingthesourceofthecontaminat:ionatthat point

in timewasconveyedto theRespondents,Edwin L. Frederick,Jr. andRichardFrederick.

However,whentheleakyundergroundstoragetankwasremovedandsoil boringsweretaken,

Mr. Huff changedhis opinionandno longerthoughtthat the leakyundergroundstoragetankon

theSVA facility wasthesourceoftheoily substancefoundin theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch

(Trial at 385). Mr. Huff furtheredopinedthat thereis apossibility thattheoily substancefound
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in theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch mayhaveoriginatedfrom a formergasolinetankwhich

wasremovedsomewherein the 1970’s (Trial at 386-387). However,the Complainantdid not

establishwhetherornot this possiblesourcewasmost likely thesourceoftheoily substance

foundin theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch. Mr. Klopke whoalsoperformedan investigationto

determinethesourceofthe oily substancein theAvon-FremontDrainageDitchstatedthat

Mitch’s GreenThumbNurserywasan equallypotentialsourcefor theoily substancefoundin the

Avon-FremontDrainageDitch. (Trial at248). However,neitherMr. Huff orMr. Klopkehave

anypersonalknowledgebasedon empiricalevidencesuchastestingofsubstances,smell, touch

or observationwhichwould leadthemto believethat SVA wasmostlikely the sourceoftheoily

substancefoundin theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch (Trial at234, 235 and238). Mr. Klopke

went asfar asto statethat hissolebasisfor his opinionsregardingthesourceoftheoily

substancefoundin theAvon-FremontDrainageDitchwasareportauthoredby theconsulting

firm Huff & Huff sentto the JEPAonMay 1, 1995 (Trial at 24). However,aspreviouslystated,

the authorofthat report,Mr. JamesHuff, cameto theconclusionthatthe leakystoragetankwas

not thesourceoftheoily substancefoundin theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch.(aftertheleaky

storagetankwasremovedandsoil testingwasconductedaroundthe excavatedarea)

TheComplainanthasfailedto meetits burdenofproofin showingthattheoily

substancein theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch morelikely thannot camefrom theSVA facility.

An equallyprobablesource,if not moreprobablesource,of theoily contaminationexists,

namelyMitch’s GreenThumbNursery. TheComplainanthasfailedto showthesamplesofthe

oily substancetakenfrom the draintile matchedanysubstancefoundon theSVA property. The

IEPA did not investigatefurther, althoughSVA hasbeenunderthe intensescrutinyoftheIEPA
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andUSEPAfor an extensiveperiodoftime, evenafterwitnessesfrom theIEPA testifiedthat

othertiles contributedto the farmtile, whetherothersites emittedtheoily substance.The

Complainantthrough theIEPArushedjudgmentandmadeit adecisionearlyin the investigation

that SVA wasthesourceoftheoily substancebut failed to substantiateits allegationsand

assumptionwith empiricalevidence.TheComplainantreliedonconjectureto supportits change.

COUNT V

It is uncontrovertedthatSVA hasbeensubjectto morestringentrequirements

regardingeffluent limit levelsthensimilar industriesacrosstheUnitedStatesandin particular

Illinois. (Trial at 414-415). Mr. GarretsonoftheEPA admittedin his testimonythat asamatter

ofcoursetheIEPA doesnot takeactionif asingularDMR reflectslevelshigherthenallowed

undertheNPDESpermit. (Trail at 80).Eventwo reportsbackto backmayonly possiblyleadto

actionon thepart oftheIEPA. The decisionwhetherornot to takeactionwasleft up to Ms.

Hopperandtheindividualsin thefield. (Trail at 80).TheComplainantputs forth Exhibits 9-17

as examplesofexcessivedischargeofTSSon thepartof SVA. However,theIEPAwith respect

to thesingularmonthlyreportsreflectingelevatedTSS levelshasadmittedthatno actionhas

beentakenorshouldbe takenregardingthosereports.Further,theEPAwith respectto the

reportsthat reflectelevatedTSS levelsfor consecutivemonths,JEPAhasalreadychosenits

remedyandeitherdecidedto do nothingorto issueacompliantletter.In light ofthenumerous

environmentalfactorsthatarebeyondthecontrolofapermiteethatinfluencethelevel ofTSS at

anygivenpoint,SVA hasacommendablerecordin accuratelyreportingthelevelsof TSS,even

if elevated.TheIEPA did not seeklegalactioncontemporaneousto receivingtheDMR from

SVA. This chargeis clearlyan attemptby theAttorneyGeneral’soffice to padits casewith
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issuesthat the Illinois EPAhasreviewedandhistoricallyconsideredinconsequential.Mr.

Garretsonfreely admitsthathe first becameawareoftheparticularlevelswhenhewasaskedby

theAttorneyGeneral’soffice to preparedocumentationfor this case(Trial at 84).Overtenyears

haveelapsedsinceSVA submittedtheDMRs atissuereflectingelevatedTSSlevelswithout the

headofthecompliancedepartmentoftheIllinois EPAexpressinganyconcernon hisown

volition or evenbecomingawareof thesituationuntil hewasapproachedby theAttorney

General’soffice. ThepurposeoftheDMRs, which is to gaincompliancefrom thepermiteeas

soonaspossible(Trial at 87)andnot to fine companieslike SVA makingagoodfaith effort to

complywith therequirementsofits NPDESpermithasbeenachieved.

Evenmoreegregious,asdiscussedabove,theNPDESpermitwasissuedto SVA.

Theentity responsiblefor complyingwith theNPDESpermitwasSVA. TheComplainanthas

not presentedanyevidence,(asamatteroffact thewitnessescalledfrom theIllinois EPAbythe

Complainanthaveevensupportedthefact)that theRespondents,EdwinFrederickandRichard

Frederickwerenot the individualsresponsibleto reportandmaintaintherequirementsofthe

NPDESpermit.On thecontrary,theComplainant’switnesseshavetestifiedto thecontrary. The

haveadmittedto a lackof evidencethattheRespondents,EdwinL. Frederick,Jr. andRichard

Frederick,personallythroughtheirauthorityviolatedtherequirementsoftheNPDESpermit.The

Complainanthasnotprovidedanyevidenceto supportits chargesagainsttheseRespondents.

ANALYSIS OF DAMAGES AND CIVIL PENALTY

TheRespondentsmaintainthat no violationsof theAct havebeenshownin this matter. The

RespondentsEdwin FrederickandRichardFrederickalsomaintainthat no showingof violation
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againstthemshouldbeallowedby theBoardbecausetheRespondentsunreasonabledelayin

pursuingthecaseagainstthemhasunreasonablyprejudicedtheirability to defendthemselves.

However,evenif theBoardwereto find that aviolationhasoccurredandthatthe Complainants

haveprovenby apreponderanceoftheevidencethat oneormoreoftheRespondentswere

responsiblefor theviolation, theRespondentsarguethatthestandardfor damagesunderthefive

countsbroughtunderthiscomplaintdo no justify theimpositionofanypenalties.

Section33 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/33©) (2002)requirestheBoardto makea

determinationwhethertheviolations areunreasonable.Section33 statesin pertinentpart:

In makingits ordersanddeterminations,theBoardshalltakeinto considerationall of the
factsandcircumstancesbearinguponthereasonablenessoftheemissions,dischargesor
depositsinvolved including,but no limited to:

1. Thecharacteranddegreeofinjury to, or interferencewith, theprotectionofthe
health,generalwelfareandphysicalpropertyof thepeople;

2. Thesocialandeconomicvalueofthepollution source;

3. Thesuitability orunsuitabilityofthepollution sourceto theareain which it is
located,includingthequestionof priority or locationin theareainvolved;

4. Thetechnicalpracticalityandeconomicreasonablenessofreducingor eliminating
theemissions,dischargesor depositsresultingfrom suchpollutionsource;and

5. Any subsequentcompliance.

COUNTS IV AND V

Becauseonly CountsIV andV involve “emissions,dischargesor deposits”,this

analysisshouldonly beappliedto theseCounts. CountN involvesthe releaseofdischargefrom

adrainagetile into theAvonDrainageDitch. To dateit hasnotbeenconfirmedby a

preponderanceoftheevidencethatthis accidentalreleasecamefrom theSVA siteandif it was
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from theSVA site, it wasnot shownthatthedischargewas“caused”by anyoftheRespondents.

It definitelywasnot “caused”by theRespondentsEdwinFrederickorRichardFrederickwho did

not ownthesiteandonly becameinvolved in theincidentin theirattemptto alleviatethe

problem.

With respectto thecharacteranddegreeof injury to, or interferencewith, theprotection

ofthehealth,generalwelfareandphysicalpropertyofthepeople,thereis no evidencethat any

suchfactorsexist.TheComplainant’switness,Mr. DonaldKlopke, who hasrespondedto

hundredsof emergencysituationsofbehalfoftheEPA (Trial at 215,216),testifiedthatthe

damagedcausedby thereleaseto theAvon DrainageDitch wereofa temporarynature. He noted

thesheenon thewaterin theditch thatwasgoneshortly afterthe incidentandthepossibilityof

odorproblemswhile thereleasedmaterialswereexposed.However,hedid not l:estify asto any

permanenthealthconcernsorconcernsfor propertydamageasaresultofthisrelease(Trial at

272,273). In fact, theJEPA EmergencyResponseUnit, which includedMr. Klopke, considered

this releaseto beofsuchminor impactthattheydid not evenbotherto identify thenumberof

draintiles that fen into farm tile, what farmtiles fed into theAvon DrainageDitch (Trial at241),

takesamplesofthematerialsin thedrainageditch andattemptto matchthereleasedmaterialsto

at theSVA site(Trial at 234),investigatethetanksattheSVA site to determineif theywerethe

sourceofthecontaminationor evenhow manytankswere atthesite(Trial at 235),fully

investigateotherpotentialsources(Trial at 247)or evenattemptto identify othersourcesofthe

contaminationanddefinitively showwhat sourcewasresponsiblefor thereleaseto theAvon

DrainageDitch (Trial at 238).

An additionalindicationofthe lackofconcernthat theEPAhadfor thisreleaseis the

29



fact that neithertheEmergencyResponseUnit or anyotherresponsegroupfrom theEPA

revisitedthesiteaftertheirinitial visit on April 19, 1995, eventhoughtheyhadnot identifiedthe

sourceof thereleaseandthereleaseto theAvonDrainageDitch continued(Trial at 255). If the

releaserepresentedany notabledegreeofpotentialinjury to, or interferencewith, theprotection

of thehealth,generalwelfareandphysicalpropertyofthepeople,theEPA surelywould have

follow throughwith theirduty to rectify thesituation. Thefact thattheTEPA determinedthat this

releasewassominorthat it did not requireany follow up is theclearestindicationoftheminor

impactthis incidenthadregardinginterferencewith, theprotectionofthehealth,generalwelfare

andphysicalpropertyofthepeople.

Mr. JamesHuff alsotestifiedthat actionstakenattherequestandatthe expenseof Edwin

FrederickandRichardFredericksuchasplacingoil absorbingboomson thewatersto collectthe

sheenmaterialswereeffectivein collectingandlimiting thespreadofthedischargematerial

(Trial at 351,352). TheFrederickscontinueto taketheactionsnecessaryto ensurethat

dischargesto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch areavoided(Trial at 347).

The socialandeconomicvalueof thepollution sourcewasneverquestionedin the

Complainant’spresentationof its caseandshouldbe unchallengedhere. SVA wasan asphalt

pavingcontractor(Trial at 277, 278, 437)with aneedfor afacility to storematerialsand

equipment.Asphaltpayersarean essentialpartofourpresentsocialstructureandeconomythat

is highlydependenton goodroadsandhighwaymaintenance.Facilitiesto hostcompaniesin the

pavingbusinessthatallow thesecompaniesto properlystorematerialsandequipmentandto

operatetheirbusinessesareequallyimportantin value. Therefore,this factorshouldheavily in

favoroftheRespondentspositionthatno penaltyshouldbeassessedin this matter.This

30



argumentpertainsto bothCountIV andCountV.

Thesuitabilityorunsuitabilityofthepollution sourceto theareain which it is located,

includingthe questionofpriority or locationin theareainvolved alsowasunquestionedin the

Complainant’scaseandsupportsan argumentagainstany assessmentofpenalty. Theclearest

evidencethat thesourceis suitedto theareait is locatedis thefactthat local authoritiesthat are

in thebestpositionto determinethesuitabilityof abusinessto an area,haveissuedto permitsto

SVA to operateatthesite. Prior to SVA beinglocatedatthesite, acompanywith similar

operationswasalsoallowedto operatetheirandpresently,a companywith operationsalmost

identical to SVA’s is still in operationat thesite. Absentanyinformationpresentedbythe

Complainantto indicatethat thepollution sourcein unsuitableto theareain which it is located,

includingthequestionofpriority or locationin theareainvolved needsto be interpretedasa

strongindicationthatthe sourcewassuitableto theareaandthis factorshouldweighstronglyin

supportoftheargumentthat no penaltyshouldbe assessedundereitherCountIV or CountV.

Considerationofthefourth factorunderSection33 — thetechnicalpracticalityand

economicreasonablenessofreducingor eliminatingtheemissions,dischargesordeposits

resultingfrom suchpollution source— highlights theunreasonablenessofpursuinga penaltyin

this caseagainstany oftheRespondents.With respectto CountIV, thetechnicalpracticability

andeconomicreasonablenessarenot evenissuesto beconsideredin mitigationuntil thesource

wasidentified. Regardlessofwhetherthereexistedapracticaltechnicalsolutionoran

economicallyreasonablesolution,noneoftheRespondentswerein apositionto takethe

necessaryactionto reduceor eliminatethedischargeuntil thesourcehadbeenidentified.

Only afterRichardFrederickandEdwinFrederickaccidentallydiscoveredthedraintile
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that wentthroughtheSVA propertyandafterMr. JamesHuff theorizedthat thedrain tile wasa

probablesourceofthe dischargeinto theAvonDrainageDitch wasit possibleto evenconsider

factorsof technicalpracticalityandeconomicreasonablenessin reducingoreliminatingthe

discharge.Oncetheprobablesourcewasidentified, theconsiderationofthetechnical

practicalityandeconomicreasonablenessnot only supportan argumentthat thesearemitigating

factorsbut alsoshowthattheRespondentsactedin goodfaith to eliminatethedischarges.

Both RichardFrederickandEdwin Fredericktook all actionsnecessaryarid availableto

reduceandeliminatethe dischargeassoonastheyidentifiedthesuspectedsource. Although

neitherof theseRespondentshada clearresponsibilityfor thedischargebecauseneitherwas

personallyinvolved in or activelyparticipatedin thecauseofthedischargeorhadtheability to

control theactsoromissionsthatgaveriseto theviolation, theyauthorizedactionto addressthe

situation. At no point did anyoftheRespondentsattemptto hinderthe effort to eliminatethe

dischargebecausetheremediationactionwould technicallyimpracticaloreconomically

unreasonable.Theextentofthetechnicaleffort is shownby thefactthat RespondentsEdwin L.

FrederickandRichardJ.Frederickcontinueto employandpayMr. JamesHuff andhis firm to

identify andremediatepossiblepollution sourcesattheSVA siteto this date(Trial at 463). The

extentoftheeconomiccommitmentis illustratedby thefact that the Respondentshasspentin

excessof$150,000in theireffort to eliminatethedischarge(Trial at 468).

With respectto CountV, technicalpracticalityandeconomicreasonablenessofreducing

or eliminatingtheemissions,dischargesordepositsresulting from suchpollution sourceare

critical factorsin understandingthecompleteunreasonablenessofthis Count. Testimonybyboth

Mr. Huff andMr. Kallis confirmedthattheviolationssitedin CountV resultedasaresultof

32



runoffof soil from neighboringfarm fields during intenserain events(Trial at 200, 516-517).

TheRespondentshadinstalledaretentionpondto allow the solidsto settlebeforedischargeand

this activity did reducethelevel ofTSS in thedischarge(Trial at 516-517).However,it is

technicallyimpossibleandconsequentlyeconomicallyunreasonablefor theRespondentsto

controlrain events. Theunreasonablenessofthis eventis illustratedby the testimonyof Mr.

Kallis who statedthat thestateseldomenforcedviolationsthat involvedaccedencesofTDS and

TSSreleasesin circumstancessimilar to thosereportedby SVA ((Trial at201), andthetestimony

of Mr. Huff whopointedout that theIEPA hadmadeamistakein placingthis requirementin a

storm waterNPDESpermit like theoneissuedto SVA andthattheIEPA hadcorrectedtheir

mistakewhentheyissuedadraft renewalpermit in 1996(Trial at 518).

Thestrongestfactorto beconsideredin determiningthatno fine shouldbe imposedunder

this countis thesubsequentcomplianceeffortsof theRespondents— especiallyRichard

FrederickandEdwinFrederick. TheFredericksactingindividually work with IEPA andUSEPA

on addressingtheproblemsat theAvon DrainageDitchevenbeforeit wasknownthat thesource

of thecontaminationwasfrom theSVA site. It wastheRespondentsRichardFrederickand

Edwin Frederickthat continueto look for thesourceofthecontaminationevenaftertheJEPA

EmergencyResponseUnit hadcompletedtheirinvestigationand decidedthesmall releasewas

not worth their continuedeffort to identify the source. WhentheFredericksidentifiedthedrain

tile on theSVA property,theimmediatelycontactedtheengineeringconsultingfirm of Huff and

Huff Inc. to ensurethepropercourseofaction. Both theFredericksandSVA gaveMr. James

Huff a freehandto do whateverhe thoughtwasright andnecessaryevengoing so far asto

replacetheineffectiveboomsthatUSEPAhadplacedin thewatersto collectthedischargewith
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moreexpensive,moreeffectiveboomspaidfor bytheRespondents.

It wastheRespondentswhocontinuedto controltheproblemofthedischargeandwho

continuedto eliminatethepotential sourcesofcontaminantslongafterEPA andUSEPAlost

interestin thesituation. It is Edwin andRichardFrederickwho continuethis eflbrt eventhrough

this time to getclosureon all of thepotentialsourcesofcontaminantsidentifiedatacostof in

excessof$150,000.00to outsidecontractorsandconsiderablecostsonpaymentsto SVA

employees.TheComplainant’sownwitness,Mr. Klopke, statedthat it is highly unusualthat

peopleor companiesthatarenot truly responsiblefor areleaseto takeresponsibilityfor the

environmentalproblemscausedby therelease(Trial at 270-271). Yet this typeof subsequent

complianceeffort is exactlywhatRichardFrederickandEdwinFrederickundertookbothon

behalfof SVA andthenasindividualwith no duty to perform. This typeof complianceeffort

shouldnot berewardedwith additionalpenaltiesto theRespondentsbecauseofa releasefrom a

sourcethat hadbeeninstalledby apreviousownerof theproperty,thattheywerenot awareof

and that theycouldnotpreventordiscoveruntil afterthereleaseoccurred.As statedin the

argumentthefourthconsiderationofSection33, it is technicallyimpracticalto addressasource

beforeyou are awareofit andit is unreasonableto expectany oftheRespondentsto undertake

any complianceeffort until theyknowwhat actionneedsto betakento comply. Considerationof

this fifth factoraswell astheotherfactordelineatedin Section33, clearlyindicatethatno

penaltycanbejustifiedunderSection33.

Section42 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/42 (from Ch. 111 ‘A, par. 1042)addressescivil

penaltiesfor anypersonthat violatesanyprovisionoftheAct oranyregulationadoptedbythe

Board, orany permit or termor conditionthereofor that violatesanydeterminationor orderof
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theBoardpursuantto theAct. Paragraph(h) ofSection42 authorizestheBoardto considerany

mattersof recordin mitigationoraggravationofpenalty.Thesectionstates:

(h) In determiningtheappropriatecivil penaltyto be imposedundersubdivisions(a),
(b)(1), (b)(2), (b)(3)or (b)(5)ofthis Section,theBoardis authorizedto consider
anymattersof recordin mitigationoraggravationofpenalty,includingbut not
limited to the following factors:
(1) thedurationandgravityoftheviolation;
(2) thepresenceorabsenceofduediligenceon thepartoftherespondentin

attemptingto complywith requirementsofthis Act andregulations
thereunderor to securerelieftherefromasprovidedby thisAct;

(3) anyeconomicbenefitaccruedby therespondentbecauseofdelayin
compliancewith requirements,in which casethe economicbenefitsshall
bedeterminedby thelowestcostalternativefor achievingcompliance;

(4) theamountofmonetarypenaltywhich will serveto deterfurtherviolations
by therespondentandto otherwiseaid in enhancingvoluntarycompliance
with this Act by therespondentandotherpersonssimilarly subjectto the
Act;

(5) thenumber,proximity in time, andgravityorpreviouslyadjudicated
violationsofthis Act bytheRespondent;

(6) whetherthe respondentsself-disclosedin accordancewith subsection(I) of
this Section,thenon-complianceto theAgency;and

(7) whethertherespondenthasagreedto undertakea“supplemental
environmentalproject”which meansan environmentallybeneficialproject
that arespondentagreesto undertakein settlementofan enforcement
actionbroughtunderthis Act, butwhich theRespondentis nototherwise
legallyrequiredto perform.

In determiningtheappropriatecivil penaltyto be imposedunder
subsection(a) orparagraph(1), (2), (3),or (5)of subsection(b) of this Section,
theBoardshallensure,in all cases,that thepenaltyis at leastasgreatasthe
economicbenefits,if any,accruedby therespondentasaresultof theviolation,
unlesstheBoardfinds thatimpositionofsuchpenaltywould resultion a arbitrary
orunreasonablefinancialhardship.However,suchcivil penaltymaybe off-set in
wholeor in partpursuantto asupplementalenvironmentalprojectagreedto by the
complainantandtherespondent.

(I) A personwho voluntarily self-disclosesnon-complianceto the
Agency,ofwhich theAgencyhasbeenunaware,is entitledto a 100%reductionin
theportionofhepenaltythat is notbasedon theeconomicbenefitofnon-
complianceif thepersoncanestablishthefollowing:

(1) thatthenon-compliancewasdiscoveredthroughan
environmentalaudit, asdefinedin Section52.2 ofthis Act, andthepersonwaives
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theenvironmentalauditprivilegesasprovidedin thatSectionwith respectto that
non-compliance;

(2) thatthenon-compliancewasdisclosedin writing within 30
daysofthe dateonwhichthat persondiscoveredit;

(3) thatthenon-compliancewasdiscoveredand disclosedprior
to:

(I) thecommencementof anAgencyinspection,
investigationorrequestfor information;

(ii) noticeof acitizensuit;
(iii) thefiling ofa complaintby acitizen,theIllinois

AttorneyGeneral,or theState’sAttorneyofthe
countyin which theviolationoccumred;

(iv) thereportingofthenon-complianceby an employee
ofthepersonwithoutthatperson’sknowledge;or

(v) imminentdiscoveryofthenon-compliancebythe
Agency;

(4) thatthenon-complianceis beingcorrectedandany
environmentalharmis beingremediatedin atimely fashion;

(5) that thepersonagreesto preventarecurrenceofthenon-
compliance;

(6) thatno relatednon-complianceeventshaveoccurredin the
pastthreeyearsat thesamefacility or in thepast5 yearsaspartof apatternat
multiple facilities ownedoroperatedby theperson;

(7) thatthenon-compliancedid notresultin seriousactual
harmorpresentan imminentandsubstantialendangermentto humanhealthorhe
environmentorviolatethespecific termsof anyjudicial or administrativeorderor
consentagreement;

(8) thatthepersoncooperatesasreasonablyrequestedby the
Agencyafterthedisclosure;and

(9) that thenon-compliancewasidentifiedvoluntarilyandnot
throughamonitoring,sampling,or auditingprocedurethat
is requiredby statute,rule, permit,judicial or
administrativeorder,or consentagreement.

If apersoncanestablishall of theelementsunderthis subsectionexceptthe
elementsetforth in paragraph(1) ofthis subsection,thepersonis entitled to a
75%reductionin theportionofthepenaltythatis not basedupontheeconomic
benefitofnon-compliance.

Theprovisionsofsubsection(I) do not applyto theCountsbroughtundertheComplaintand

thereforeneednotbeanalyzed.TheremainderofSection42 needsto beappliedto all ofthe
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Countsto determinetheappropriatedamages.However,suchanapplicationoftheremainderof

section42 would indicatethatno penaltyshouldbeassessedagainstanyof theRespondents.

Thethresholdquestionthat needsto beaddressedunderthis sectionis theeconomic

benefitaccruedby theRespondentasaresultof theviolations. Thepenaltymustbeatleastas

greatastheeconomicbenefit,unlesstheBoardfinds thatimpositionofsuchpenaltywould result

in anarbitraryorunreasonablefinancialhardship. In this mattertheComplainantwasunableto

establishthat any economicbenefitwasaccruedby anyof theRespondents.In fact,no economic

benefitwas realizedby anyof theRespondentsandareviewof theviolationsandtheactivitiesof

theRespondentswouldclearlyindicatethatno economicbenefitcouldhaveaccrued.

COUNT I

In CountI, the ComplainantaccusedtheRespondentsofmakingfalsestatementsin the

DMRs it submittedto theIEPAunderSVA’s NPDESpermit. SVA wasableto showthat the

mistakewasdueto a clerical errorasa resultof an inexperiencedemployeesubmittingthewrong

month’sdata. Thecorrectinformationwassubsequentlysubmittedto theJEPA.

Sincetherequiredtestingandreportpreparationwereperformed,SVA did not avoidany

expenseby submitting thewrongdata. In fact, theyincurredsubstantialadditionalcostin

making therequiredcorrectionandaddressingtheproblemthroughtheir lawyerswith the

AttorneyGeneral’sOffice. Therecanbeno argumentthat theRespondentsreceivedan economic

benefit from this mistake.

Considerationoftheotherfactorsdelineatedin Section42 alsosupporta finding thatno

civil penaltyis justified underCountI. Thedurationof theallegedoffensewasonly for one

reportingperiod. The gravityis minorconsideringit wasonly areportingmatterthat did not
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involve anyharmto thepublic healthortheenvironment.TheRespondentsacteddiligently as

soonas theywere informedthat amistakehadbeenmadeandtheysubsequentlysubmittedthe

properdata. No economicaccruedasaresultof thedelayin compliance.Noneofthe

RespondentspresentlypossessaNPDESpermit so thereis no needto imposea monetarypenalty

to deterfurtherviolations. Therewereno previousadjudicatedviolationof theAct by any ofthe

Respondents.TheRespondentswerenot in a positionto self-disclosetheviolation becausethey

werenot awareoftheallegedviolationuntil theEPA madethemawareofthemistake. The

Respondentsactivitieswith respectto addressingthedischargeto theAvonDrainageDitch and

GraysLakerepresentade factosupplementalenvironmentalprojectbecausetheRespondents—

especiallyEdwinFrederickandRichardFrederick— took actionsbeyondthe actionsrequiredto

addressthedischargefrom theSVA site. Theexpendituresfor thisadditionalshouldbe credited

againstanypossiblepenalty.

COUNT II

In Count II, theComplainantmaintainedtheRespondentsfailedto maketimely

applicationfor renewaloftheirNPDESpermit. SVA did not apply for therenewalbecausethey

weretold by IEPA officials andotherexpertsfamiliarwith NPDES permitsthat theywould not

berequiredto havean individual permitfor thesite. SVA did subsequentlyapplyforthepermit

eventhoughtheirremainsan issueasto whetherornot a permitis required.

Sincetherequiredapplicationwassubsequentlycompletedandsubmitted,SVA did not

avoidanyexpenseby submittingthewrongdata. In fact, they incurredsubstantialadditionalcost

in trying to clarify this matterandin attemptingto gettheEPA to issuethepermit. To date,

IEPA hasnot issueda permitrenewal.Therecanbe no argumentthattheRespondentsreceived
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an economicbenefitfrom this mistake.

Considerationoftheother factorsdelineatedin Section42alsosupporta finding thatno

civil penaltyis justifiedunderCountI. Thedurationoftheallegedoffensewasonly adelayof a

fewmonthsfrom thedatetheapplicationwassupposedto be filed andthedateit wasactually

file. This periodis muchshorterthanthenumberofyearsit is takingtheIEPA to issuetheactual

NPDESpermit. Thegravity is minorconsideringit wasonly areportingmatterthatdid not

involve anyharmto thepublichealthortheenvironment. SVA continuedto control discharges

from thesiteas it hadduring theperiodtheNPDESpermitwasin place. TheRespondentsacted

diligently assoonastheyrealizedthat therewasaquestionasto whetherornotapermitwas

requiredandtheysubsequentlysubmittedtheproperapplication.No economicaccruedasa

resultofthedelayin applying. NoneoftheRespondentspresentlypossessaNPI)ESpermitso

thereis no needto imposeamonetarypenaltyto deterfurtherviolations. Therewereno previous

adjudicatedviolation ofthe Act by any oftheRespondents.TheRespondentsdid in fact self-

disclosethis violationthroughits inquiries to thestateconcerningtheneedto file an application.

TheRespondentsactivitieswith respectto addressingthedischargeto theAvonDrainageDitch

andGraysLakerepresentade facto supplementalenvironmentalprojectbecausethe

Respondents— especiallyEdwin FrederickandRichardFrederick— tookactionsbeyondthe

actionsrequiredto addressthedischargefrom theSVA site. Theexpendituresfor this additional

shouldbe creditedagainstanypossiblepenalty.

COUNT III

In CountIII, theComplainantfalselyaccusedtheRespondentsoffailure to complywith
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samplingandreportingrequirementsby failing to submitDMRs to theJEPAasrequiredunder

SVA’s NPDESpermit. SVA wasableto showthat theyhadtakenall therequiredsamples,had

the samplesanalyzedandpreparedtherequiredDMR reports.This information‘was submittedto

theEPA andtheAttorneyGeneral’sOffice assoonasSVA realizedtherewasanissue

involving therecompliancewith thereportingrequirements.Basedon theIEPA’s previous

recordofmishandlingDMRs andthelax proceduresusedin handlingDMRs, thereis a

presumptionthat theDMRs weresubmittedby lost by EPA.

Sincetherequiredtestingandreportpreparationwereperformed,SVA did not avoidany

expensebysubmittingthewrongdata. In fact, theyincurredsubstantialadditionalcost in

addressingtheproblemthroughtheir lawyerswith theAttorneyGeneral’sOffice. Therecanbe

no argumentthat theRespondentsreceivedan economicbenefitfrom this mistake.

Considerationoftheotherfactorsdelineatedin Section42 also supporta finding that no

civil penaltyis justified underCountI. Evenif it weresomehowdeterminedthai: SVA failed to

file someof thereports,thedurationoftheallegedoffenseonly for a fewreportingperiods

throughthelife of thepermit. The gravityis minorconsideringit wasonly areportingmatter

that did not involve anyharmto thepublic healthor theenvironment.TheRespondentsacted

diligently as soonastheywereinformedthat DMRs weremissingand theysuppliedcopiesofthe

reportto theJEPA andtheAttorneyGeneral’sOffice. No economicaccruedasaresultofthe

lossof thesereports. NoneoftheRespondentspresentlypossessaNPDESperm:it so thereis no

needto imposeamonetarypenaltyto deterfurtherviolations. Therewereno previous

adjudicatedviolation oftheAct by anyoftheRespondents.TheRespondentswerenot in a

positionto self-disclosetheviolationbecausetheywerenot awareoftheallegedviolationuntil

40



theEPA madethemawareof themistake. TheRespondentsactivitieswith respectto

addressingthedischargeto theAvonDrainageDitch andGraysLakerepresenta. de facto

supplementalenvironmentalprojectbecausetheRespondents— especiallyEdwinFrederickand

RichardFrederick— took actionsbeyondtheactionsrequiredto addressthedischargefrom the

SVA site. Theexpendituresfor this additional shouldbecreditedagainstanypossiblepenalty.

COUNT IV

In CountIV, the ComplainantmaintaintheRespondentsallowedor causedthedischarge

of an oily substanceto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch. Noneof theRespondentscausedor

allowedthedischargeandnoneoftheRespondentswerein apositionto preventthedischarge.

However,afterpotentialsourcesofthedischargewereidentified,theRespondentsRichard

FrederickandEdwin Fredericktookextraordinaryefforts to addresstheproblem.Becauseofthe

largeexpendituresto addressthedischargeandtheeliminationofthepotentialsources,the

Respondentsdid not avoidanyexpenseby allegedly“allowing or causing”thedischarge.In fact,

theyincurredsubstantialadditionalcoston a voluntarybasis,muchofwhich theywerenot

requiredto spendin trying to ensurethatthereleaseswould stop.Therecanbe no argumentthat

theRespondentsreceivedan economicbenefitfrom this activity.

Considerationofthe otherfactorsdelineatedin Section42 also supporta finding that no

civil penaltyis justifiedunderCountIV. Thedurationoftheallegedoffensewasonly for ashort

periodandit hasnot reoccurredsincetheRespondentstook theleadin addressingtheproblem.

Thisperiodis muchshorterthanthenumberofyearstheproblemwould havepersistedif the

IEPA actionsto addresstheproblemhadbeentheonly actiontaken. Thegravity is minor

consideringthat all ofthewitnessesat trial statedthat themainproblemwasaslightpetroleum
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odorconcernandatemporarysheenona drainageditch. Theincidentdid not involve anylasting

harmto thepublic healthor the environment. SVA continuedto controldischargesfrom thesite

asit hadduring theperiodtheNPDESpermitwasin place. TheRespondentsacteddiligently as

soonasthey identifiedthepotential sourceofthe releaseandworkedwith theIEPA andthe

USEPAevenbeforetheythoughtthatthereleasecouldpossiblybecomingfrom SVA’s

property. No economicaccruedasaresultof thereleaseto any of theRespondents.Noneof the

Respondentspresentlyareinvolved in theownershiporoperationofthesite,sothereis no need

to imposeamonetarypenaltyto deterfurtherviolations. Therewereno previousadjudicated

violationoftheAct by anyof theRespondents.TheRespondentsdid in factself-disclosethe

potentialsourceofthereleaseimmediatelyupondiscoverythesource. TheRespondents

activitieswith respectto addressingthedischargeto theAvonDrainageDitch andGraysLake

representade factosupplementalenvironmentalprojectbecausetheRespondents— especially

EdwinFrederickandRichardFrederick— took actionsbeyondtheactionsrequiredto addressthe

dischargefrom theSVA site. Theexpendituresfor this additionalshouldbecreditedagainstany

possiblepenalty.

COUNT V

In CountV, theComplainantaccusedtheRespondentsofexceedingthedLischargelimits

establishedin SVA’s NPDESpermit. ThisCountpresentspetty andvindictive allegationsthat

illustrate theComplainantlackofrespectfor theBoardandthepeopleofthestateofIllinois. The

Complainantknowsthatthesepermitrequirementscouldnot becompliedwith underperiods

following intensestormeventsandconsequentlytheComplainantsnevertakeactionwith respect

to suchaccedencesexceptwhenit electto harasscertainpermit holderssuchasSVA. Thefact
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that theComplainantwouldwastetheresourcesof theBoardandtheRespondentsto address

suchtrivial chargesin an attemptto causeunduehardshipto theRespondentsshouldnot be

rewardedby theBoard.

Sincetherequiredtestingandreportpreparationwereperformed,SVA did not avoidany

expenseby submittingthewrongdata. Regardlessof theeffort andexpendituresmadeby the

Respondents,theywouldprobablynot havebeenableto avoidtheaccedences.Therefore,they

did not avoidanyexpenseby not avoidingtheproblem. In fact, theyincurredsubstantial

additionalcost in addressingtheproblemthroughtheir lawyerswith theAttorneyGeneral’s

Office. Therecanbe no argumentthattheRespondentsreceivedaneconomicbenefitfrom this

mistake.

Considerationoftheotherfactorsdelineatedin Section42 alsosupporta finding that no

civil penaltyis justified underCount V. Thedurationoftheallegedoffensewasonly for a few,

isolatedreportingperiodsfollowing intensestormevents.Thegravityis minor consideringit

wasonly areportingofslightly elevatedsolid levelsthat do notresultin anyharm to thepublic

healthortheenvironment.TheRespondentsacteddiligently as soonastheywereawareof the

problemby addressingtheproblemwith theconsultingenvironmentalengineerbut evenacting

diligently to investigatetheproblem,therewasnothingtheRespondentscoulddo to alleviatethe

potentialfor slight accedencesfrom thepoorlyestablishedstandard..No economicaccruedasa

resultofthedelayin compliance.NoneoftheRespondentspresentlypossessaNPDES permit

so thereis no needto imposea monetarypenaltyto deterfurtherviolations. Therewereno

previousadjudicatedviolationof theAct by anyoftheRespondents.TheRespondentSVA self-

disclosedtheviolationsthroughits DMR reports. TheotherRespondentswerenot involved in
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the activitiesinvolved in this CountV andthereforehadno duty to selfreport. TheRespondents

activitieswith respectto addressingthedischargeto theAvonDrainageDitchand GraysLake

representade factosupplementalenvironmentalprojectbecausetheRespondents— especially

Edwin FrederickandRichardFrederick— tookactionsbeyondthe actionsrequiredto addressthe

dischargefrom theSVA site. The expendituresfor this additionalshouldbecreditedagainstany

possiblepenalty.

David S. O’Neill

David S. O’Neill, Attorneyat Law
5487N. MilwaukeeAvenue
Chicago,IL 60634-1249
(773)792-1333
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